
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN
THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

SPECIAL MEETING - TUESDAY, JULY 15, 2014 - 10:00 A.M.
             

1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion:  Update of legislative activity in
Washington, D.C. by Patricia Power of Bose Public Affairs
Group.

Presented

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
14-07-01, which authorizes the Gila County Housing Authority
to submit its Revised Annual Plan for FY2014 to the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.
(Malissa Buzan)

Adopted

 

B.   Information/Discussion to obtain public comment regarding
the adoption of the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County
Budget.  (Don McDaniel) 

No Comments

 

4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors
and convene as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors.) Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the final
FY 2014-2015 Gila County Library District Budget in the
amount of $1,762,073.  (Jacque Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as
the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and
reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

Adopted

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
14-07-03, which authorizes the adoption of the final FY
2014-2015 Gila County Budget in the amount of
$94,444,905.  (Don McDaniel) 

Adopted

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve two Professional Approved



C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve two Professional
Services Contracts for the attorneys which the Superior Court
in Gila County utilizes on an annual basis.  (Jonathan Bearup)

Approved

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to receive updated information
on Planning and Zoning Department Case No. Z-14-01, a
rezoning application submitted by Beau Woodring to rezone tax
parcel number 301-19-055B which is located in Pine, and to
acknowledge Mr. Woodring's withdrawal of this rezoning
application.  (Bob Gould)

Acknowledged

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to appoint Peter Van Haren as
an alternative Hearing Officer for the Community Development
Division's Code Enforcement Program.  (Bob Gould)

Appointed

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the award of the
lubricant portion for Invitation for Bids No. 041414 for the
purchase and delivery of bulk lubricants; award to the lowest,
most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and
authorize the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to
Canyon State Oil, which will allow for the award of both fuel
and lubricants on Contract No. 041414.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Approved

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for
Invitation for Bids No. 012114 for the 2nd floor renovation for
the School Superintendent's and Assessor's Offices; award to
the lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder; and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for
the winning bidder. 
(Jeff Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

Awarded

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental
Agreement No. 061714-1/Agreement between Gila County,
Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and
Freeport-McMoRan in order to allow Gila County to transmit an
amount of up to $50,000 in grant monies provided by
Freeport-McMoRan to the recipient of the grant, Canyon
Domestic Water Improvement District; and to authorize the
Chairman's signature on Intergovernmental Agreement No.
061714-1/Agreement.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Approved

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
14-07-04 declaring a state of emergency within Gila County as
a result of infrastructure and property damage caused by
abnormally heavy monsoon rain and winds.
(Don McDaniel)

Adopted

 



 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda
and discussed and voted upon as a regular agenda item
upon the request of any member of the Board of
Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of Amendment No. 4 to a Weatherization Low Income
Assistance Agreement (Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4)
between the State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy
(OEP) and the Gila County Community Services Division,
Housing Services, whereby OEP will provide up to $7,150 in
additional funding as a reimbursement ceiling for Fiscal Year
2015, for the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

Approved

 

B.   Approval to sign and replace the signature page on a Contract
Application between Gila County d/b/a Gila Employment and
Special Training Program (GEST) and the Arizona Department
of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration
(ADES/RSA), which was previously approved by the Board of
Supervisors on March 18, 2014, changing the section Contract
Term to October 1, 2014, or on the date of last signature,
whichever is later and shall terminate on September 30, 2019.

Approved

 

C.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 014-0444
between the Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency
on Aging, Region V, (PGCSC) and the Division of Community
Services, Housing Services, whereby PGCSC will provide
funding in the amount of $6,242 to be used for emergency
minor home repair to eligible citizens residing in Gila County
effective July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

Approved

 

D.   Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
ADHS14-072102) between the Arizona Department of Health
Services and the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency
Services in the amount of $135,000 to continue to provide
Tobacco Free Environments Program services from July 1,
2014, through June 30, 2017.

Approved

 

E.   Adoption of an Order canceling precinct elections and
appointing the precinct committeemen as shown on Attachment
A of the Order, who have filed nomination petitions or
nomination papers for precinct committeeman of their party in
the precinct shown. 

Adopted

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report Acknowledged



F.   Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report
submitted by the Recorder's Office.

Acknowledged

 

G.   Approval of the June 10, 2014, and July 1, 2014, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

H.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of June 16,
2014 to June 20, 2014; and June 23, 2014 to June 27, 2014.

Acknowledged

 

I. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of
July 8, 2014, and July 15, 2014. 

Approved

 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors
on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors.
Board members may not discuss items that are not specifically
identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open
call to the public, individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may
ask that a matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

No Comments

 

7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the
Chief Administrator may present a brief summary of current
events.  No action may be taken on issues presented. 

Presented

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING.



   
ARF-2725     Presentations      2. A.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  
Reporting
Period:

July 2014

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
Update of legislative activity in Washington, D.C. by Patricia Power of
Bose Public Affairs Group

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion:  Update of legislative activity in Washington,
D.C. by Patricia Power of Bose Public Affairs Group.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   

ARF-2629     Public Hearing      3. A.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Patricia Campos, Section 8 Housing Program Administrator, Community

Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 14-07-01 authorizing the Gila County Housing Authority to submit its Revised Public
Housing Authority Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2014

Background Information
On March 4, 2014, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 14-03-03, which
authorized the Gila County Housing Authority to submit its Public Housing Authority (PHA) Annual Plan
for FY 2014 to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

On April 30, 2014, HUD sent a letter to the Gila County Housing Authority requesting that certain
revisions are made to the FY 2014 Annual Plan, specifically revising the Violence Against Women Act
(VAWA) section.

Evaluation
HUD has recommended that the Gila County Housing Authority revise the Violence Against Women Act
(VAWA) section contained in its Annual Plan for FY 2014.

A public hearing must be held to obtain public comment before the Board of Supervisors considers
approving the Revised PHA Annual Plan for FY2014. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Housing Annual Plan for FY 2014 has been updated and revised and has been
resubmitted to the Gila County Board of Supervisors for approval.  A public hearing needs to be held by
the Board of Supervisors to provide the public with an opportunity to comment on the Revised PHA
Annual Plan prior to the Board considering its approval.  

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt Resolution
No. 14-07-01, which will allow the Gila County Public Housing Authority to submit its Revised Gila
County Housing Authority Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2014 with the required updates to the
Violence Against Women Act Policy.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-07-01, which authorizes the Gila County
Housing Authority to submit its Revised Annual Plan for FY2014 to the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development.
(Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
2014 Public Housing Plan

















































   
ARF-2646     Public Hearing      3. B.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  
Submitted By: Marian

Sheppard,
Clerk, Clerk
of the Board
of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-01-14 to
06-30-15

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Public Hearing regarding the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget.

Background Information
On June 24, 2014, the Board of Supervisors adopted the tentative FY
2014-2015 Gila County Budget.

A.R.S. §42-17103 states, "The governing body of each county, city or town
shall publish the estimates of revenues and expenses, or a summary of
revenues and expenses, and a notice of public hearing of the governing
body to hear taxpayers and make tax levies at at designated times and
places..."  The publication must be done no later than seven (7) days after
the Board of Supervisors adopts the tentative Gila County budget.

A summary of the revenues and expenses and a notice of public hearing
was published in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper in the July 2nd and 
9th editions per statutory requirements.  A copy of the tentative FY
2014-2015 Gila County Budget was mailed to each library within the
County; a copy of the entire budget was posted on the County's website;
and a copy was made available to the public at the Clerk of the Board's
office.

Evaluation



N/A

Conclusion
A public hearing must be held by the Board of Supervisors to discuss and
obtain public comment regarding the adoption of the final 2014-2015
fiscal year budget for Gila County.  Immediately following the hearing, the
Board of Supervisors will consider the adoption of the final FY 2014-2015
Gila County Budget.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion to obtain public comment regarding the adoption
of the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget.  (Don McDaniel) 

Attachments
Newspaper Publication of Public Hearing











   

ARF-2647     Regular Agenda Item      4. A.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-01-14 to
06-30-15

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Library District Budget.

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes require that special taxing districts, such as the Gila County
Library District, adopt a yearly budget.  With regard to any issue that affects the Gila
County Library District, an official action/decision must be made by the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors (BOD).  In Gila County, the Board of Supervisors
(BOS) acts the the BOD.  Prior to addressing any Library District issue, the
BOS adjourns as the BOS and then convenes as the BOD.  

On June 24, 2014, the Gila County Library District Board of Directors adopted the
tentative 2013-2014 fiscal year budget for the Library District in the amount of
$1,762,073.

In Gila County, the Board reviews and adopts the Library District budget prior to
reviewing and adopting the Gila County budget of which the Library District is
included in that budget.

Evaluation
A public hearing was scheduled on this meeting agenda prior to this agenda item to
allow the public an opportunity to provide comments, for or against, the final FY
2014-2015 Gila County Budget, to which the Library District's budget is a part of
the County's total budget.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors will convene as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors in order to address this agenda item.

Recommendation
N/A



Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors.) Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the final FY
2014-2015 Gila County Library District Budget in the amount of $1,762,073.  (Jacque
Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and reconvene
as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   

ARF-2648     Regular Agenda Item      4. B.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr. 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-01-14 to
06-30-15

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 14-07-03 authorizing the adoption of the final FY
2014-2015 Gila County Budget. 

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes require that the Board of Supervisors (BOS) adopt an
annual budget for Gila County.  

Per statutory requirements, the Board of Supervisors adopted the tentative FY
2014-2015 Gila County Budget on June 24, 2014, in the amount of $94,444,905; a
summary of the estimates of revenues and expenses and a notice of public hearing was
published for two (2) consecutive weeks in the official newspaper of the County within
seven (7) days after the adoption of the tentative budget - publication dates were July
2nd and 9th; a copy of the tentative FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget was mailed to
all libraries within Gila County, posted on the County's website, and made available for
the public's viewing at the Clerk of the Board's office; and a public hearing was held on
this date to hear taxpayers' comments on the final County budget prior to the Board's
consideration to adopt the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget.

Evaluation
The Board of Supervisors has complied with all statutory requirements with regard to
adopting the annual budget for Gila County; therefore, it is the time for the Board to
consider adopting Resolution No. 14-07-03, which authorizes the adoption of the final
FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors needs to consider adopting the final fiscal year 2014-2015
budget for Gila County.

Recommendation
N/A



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-07-03, which authorizes
the adoption of the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget in the amount of
$94,444,905.  (Don McDaniel) 

Attachments
Resolution No. 14-07-03
2014-2015 Budget



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-07-03 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE 2014-

2015 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET FOR GILA COUNTY.  

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Title 42, Chapter 17, Articles 1-5, 

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.), the Board of Supervisors did, on June 24, 2014, make an 

estimate of the different amounts required to meet the public expenditures/expenses for the 

ensuing year, also an estimate of revenues from sources other than direct taxation, and the 

amount to be raised by taxation upon real and personal property of Gila County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with said chapter of said title, and following due public 

notice, the Board met on July 15, 2014, at which meeting any taxpayer was privileged to appear 

and be heard in favor of or against any of the proposed expenditures/expenses to tax levies; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it appears that publication has been duly made as required by law, of said 

estimates together with a notice that the Board would meet on July 15, 2014, at the office of the 

Board for the purpose of hearing taxpayers and making tax levies as set forth in said estimates; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, it appears that the sums to be raised by taxation, as specified therein, do not 

in the aggregate exceed that amount as computed in A.R.S. §42-17051(A).  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the said estimates of revenues and 

expenditures shown on the accompanying schedules as now reduced or changed by the same are 

hereby adopted as the budget of Gila County for the 2014-2015 fiscal year. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15
th

 day of July 2014, by the Board of 

Supervisors, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 

      

      

Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

______________________________ __________________________________  

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 





















































































































































































   

ARF-2657     Regular Agenda Item      4. C.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 to
June 30, 2015

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Approval of 2 Attorney Contracts for the Superior Court.

Background Information
Each year the Superior Court in Gila County retains various attorneys to provide
professional legal services, such as representation for the indigent citizens of Gila
County. The two contracts at issue pertain to indigent criminal felony / misdemeanor
/ delinquency representation as well as dependency representation primarily for
children.

Evaluation
The Professional Services Contracts, offered to the attorneys utilized by the Superior
Court in Gila County will meet and satisfy compliance requirements of Gila County
procurement procedures and Board approved policies. In addition to being an
appropriate business practice, the contracts will allow for a Purchase Order to be
issued, which will facilitate the accounting and payment processes. The contracts will
also serve to clearly identify and set expectations for the performance of the attorneys.

Conclusion
In addition to identifying procurement procedures, the Gila County Statement of
Operating Procedures for the Procurement Group was designed to facilitate the flow of
issuing contracts, issuing purchase orders and issuing payment to Gila County
vendors, while maintaining State mandated due diligence procedures.  By entering
into Professional Services Contracts with the various attorneys for the Superior Court
in Gila County, the policies and procedures adopted by the Board of Supervisors for
procurement processes will be satisfied.

Recommendation
The Court Administrator for the Superior Court in Gila County recommends approving
the Professional Services Contracts with the attorneys.

Suggested Motion



Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve two Professional Services Contracts for the
attorneys which the Superior Court in Gila County utilizes on an annual basis.  (Jonathan Bearup)
(Jonathan Bearup)

Attachments
Professional Services Contract No. 060914 - Brad Crider
Professional Services Contract No. 060614 - Raymond Geiser
Legal Explantion









































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-2592     Regular Agenda Item      4. D.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  
Submitted For: Robert Gould 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Community Development Division

Information
Request/Subject
Planning and Zoning Dept. Case No. Z-14-01 - Beau Woodring Rezoning
Application

Background Information
Beau Woodring of Southwest Development Corporation submitted an
application to the Planning and Zoning Department to rezone Assessor's
tax parcel number 301-19-055B from R1-D12(Single Family Residential
with a minimum residential lot size of 12,000 square feet ) and TR
(Transitional Residential) to C2(Commercial).

On June 3, 2014, the Board of Supervisors held a public hearing to
obtain comments from the public regarding this rezoning application.   As
a result of public comment in opposition of this rezoning, the Board of
Supervisors remanded this case to the Planning and Zoning Commission
for the Commission to consider adding additional stipulations of approval
based on concerns voiced by local citizens and so that a community
meeting could be held in Pine, and it continued this item to the July 15th
Board meeting.

On June 25 2014, the Planning and Zoning held a meeting in Pine to
further review this rezoning application and to obtain further public
comment.  At the end of that meeting, Mr. Woodring announced that he
was withdrawing his rezoning application.  The following day, Robert
Gould, Community Development Division Director, and Margie Chapman,
Code Compliance Supervisor, received official notification from Mr.
Woodring via email of his application withdrawal. 

Evaluation
The Board of Supervisors needs to acknowledge Mr. Woodring's
withdrawal of his application to rezone parcel number 301-19-055B.

Conclusion



Conclusion
Staff finds that Commercial two (C2) zoning is an appropriate zoning
district for parcels bordering on the State Highway 87. Due to the location
of some residential development in the area care should be taken to
ensure compatibility.

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on June 25th in Pine and at
that time Mr. Woodring announced that he was withdrawing this application
from any further consideration.

Recommendation
Staff would recommend that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge Mr.
Woodring's withdrawal of this application.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to receive updated information on
Planning and Zoning Department Case No. Z-14-01, a rezoning
application submitted by Beau Woodring to rezone tax parcel number
301-19-055B which is located in Pine, and to acknowledge Mr. Woodring's
withdrawal of this rezoning application.  (Bob Gould)

Attachments
Staff Report
Woodring's Withdrawal Notification



Board of Supervisors

Parcel to be Rezoned

Staff Report 
to the 

Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors’ Hearing
June 3, 2014

Parcel to be Rezoned

1



2

I APPLICATION

Applicant 
Name

Beau Woodring

Applicant 
Address

10229 N. Scottsdale Road, Suite F, Scottsdale,  AZ

Site Address Parcel #2 of ROS 4305B
APN Number 301-19-055B
Current 
Zoning 

TR/R1-D12
IntentandPurpose:
a. Toprovideadegreeofflexibilityinlanduseintransitionalareaswhereami

xture of residentialand lightcommercial useswill bebeneficial.
b. Toallowforcertainmixed-usedevelopmentssubjecttoanapprovedsiteplan, 

provided
suchdevelopmentsshall beinharmonywith,andwill resultinaminimum
disruptionto, surrounding uses.

c. To createtransitional zones toserveasbuffersbetweenresidential
districtsandcommercialorindustrial districts.

Current 
Comprehensiv
e Plan 
Designation

Multi-FunctionalCorridor:
TheMulti-FunctionalCorridorcategorydenotesareas 
ofthecountythatarelocatedadjacenttoaprimarytransportationrouteandwherea 
mixtureoflandusesaredesirablebaseduponthespecificlocationalcharacteristics
ofthe land.The Multi-Functional Corridor categoryis designed tocapitalize on
the land 
useopportunitiesresultingfromproximitytoandvisibilityofaprimaryvehicular 
transportationcorridor.TheusespermittedintheMulti-
FunctionalCorridorcategory 
areintendedtorespondtotheuniqueopportunities,scaleandfunctionsthatexistin 
thedifferentareasofthecounty.Developmentinthiscategorytypicallyoccurson 
lotsthatarewideandshallowduetothelinearnatureoftheadjacenttransportation 
facilities.Thepotentialnegativeimpactsofalineardevelopmentpattern,ifany, 
shouldbeaddressedthroughsiteplanning,bufferingandafterdesignconsideration
s. 
Additionalusespermittedwithinthecategoryshallincludefarming,ranchingand 
thoseuses otherwisepermitted bystatestatute.

Application 
Number

Z-14-01



3

II Purpose & Description

The purpose of this application is to rezone Parcel 2 on Record of Survey 4305B from 
R1-D12& TR to Commercial Two (C2) to establish a retail store on the property.  Mr. 
Woodring has requested that the Board of Supervisors accept his withdrawal of this 
application 

III Zoning Regulations

The parcel is currently multi-zoned with both R1-D12 and TR zoning. The map below 
shows the current zoning for surrounding parcels. The actual parcel is not shown on the 
tax parcel map due to a recently approved minor land division. The parcel was a part of 

parcel number 301-19-019W.

The Comprehensive Plan has designated this area as a Multi-Functional Corridor. This is 
appropriate for the proposed C2 zoning district.

IV Primary issue or issues to consider

There is some single family residential development in close proximity to this site. 
Because of this it will be necessary to take those precautions that ensure greater 
compatibility. Issues such as noise, lighting and outdoor activities need to be controlled.

V Background

The location of this parcel is along State Highway 87 just as you enter the downtown area 
of Pine.  The parcel is currently undeveloped and would be appropriate for commercial 

Parcel area to be 
Rezoned



4

development. A parcel directly across the street was recently rezoned to C2 to allow a 
wider choice in commercial activities then is permitted under TR zoning.

VI Analysis

The parcel has minimum slopes and excellent access on State Highway 87. The current 
zoning would allow some commercial development, but it is restrictive in size of 
commercial and hours of operation. TRzoning acts as a buffer zone between residential 
and commercial development. It is appropriate for neighborhood areas as the intent is to 
allow neighborhood type commercial development. Hardscrabble Road in Pine is an area 
that is perfect for TRzoning due to the presence of residential development. 

A floodplain report was run for this parcel and there is no 100-year floodplain on this 
parcel.

VII Summary 

This parcel is not within the floodplain area and there are no significant topographic 
issues to take into consideration.The site has excellent access off State Highway 87. All 
in all, the property is suitable for C2 zoning activities.

VIII Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors accept Mr. Woodring’s request to 
withdraw this application from consideration. Staff concurs with the Planning and 
Zoning Commission’s recommendation for the Board of Supervisors to approve Planning 
and Zoning Department Case No. Z-14-01 with the following conditions:

1. All outdoor lighting is appropriately shielded to avoid spillage to other parcels to 
the rear of this parcel.

2. All zoning, wastewater, public works, health, fire district and building regulations 
that are applicable to the development of this retail store as well as Arizona 
Department of Transportation regulationsshall be addressed if needed.

3. The architectural design for this structure shall be appropriate for the Pine area.
4. If the applicant or property owner wants to serve alcoholic beverages they must 

submit an application for a conditional use permit.  
5. Buffering shall include both a solid wall and landscaping.
6. When the applicant submits the property development plan, the Director shall 

provide a copy to the Planning and Commission for its review.





   
ARF-2652     Regular Agenda Item      4. E.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Robert Gould 
Submitted By: Robert Gould, Community Development Division Director, Community Development Division
Department: Community Development Division Division: Code Enforcement

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment of an Alternative Hearing Officer for the Community Development Division's Code Enforcement Program

Background Information
The Community Development Division currently uses Jim Weeks as a Hearing Officer for its Code Enforcement
Program.  Mr. Weeks will continue serving in that capacity; however, during those times when Mr. Weeks has a
conflict of interest with a particular case, it is necessary to use an alternate Hearing Officer.  That situation has
recently risen regarding a case in Strawberry.

Per A.R.S. § 11-815 (E), Gila County is authorized to appoint a hearing officer to hear and decide Code violation
cases.

Evaluation
Peter Van Haren has offered to serve as an alternative Hearing Officer for Gila County.  Should the Board of
Supervisors appoint Mr. Peter Van Haren, it is anticipated that his services will seldom be needed as this is the first
time a conflict has risen in over eight years. It is crucial that the Board of Supervisors appoint an alternate Hearing
Officer to avoid any further delay in hearing the current case in Strawberry and for future cases.  Mr. Peter Van
Haren has insisted that he does not want any payment for these services.

Conclusion
Peter Van Haren has four years of experience in performing these duties and is highly regarded by those who work
with him. The only added cost to the County will be for Mr. Haren's travel; however, staff believes it is worthwhile to
appoint Mr. Haren. As stated earlier, it is anticipated that Mr. Haren's services will rarely be needed.

Recommendation
The Community Development Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors appoint Peter Van Haren as an
alternative Hearing Officer for the Community Development Division's Code Enforcement Program.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to appoint Peter Van Haren as an alternative Hearing Officer for the Community
Development Division's Code Enforcement Program.  (Bob Gould)

Attachments
ARS 11-815



11-815.Enforcement; county zoning inspector; deputies; building permits; 
violations; classification; civil penalties; hearing officers and procedures
A. The county zoning ordinance shall provide for its enforcement within a zoned 
territory by means of withholding building permits, and for such purposes may 
establish the position of county zoning inspector, and such deputy inspectors as 
may be required, who shall be appointed by the board.
B. After the establishment and filling of the position, it is unlawful to erect, 
construct, reconstruct, alter or use any building or other structure within a zoning 
district covered by the ordinance without first obtaining a building permit from the 
inspector and for that purpose the applicant shall provide the zoning inspector with 
a sketch of the proposed construction containing sufficient information for the 
enforcement of the zoning ordinance. A permit is not required for repairs or 
improvements of a value not exceeding five hundred dollars. Reasonable fees may 
be charged for the issuance of a permit. The inspector shall recognize the 
limitations placed on the inspector's authority by sections 11-804 and 11-811, and 
shall issue the permit when it appears that the proposed erection, construction, 
reconstruction, alteration or use fully conforms to the zoning ordinance. In any 
other case the inspector shall withhold the permit.
C. It is unlawful to erect, construct, reconstruct, maintain or use any land in any 
zoning district in violation of any regulation or any provision of any ordinance 
pertaining to the land and any violation constitutes a public nuisance. Any person, 
firm or corporation violating an ordinance, or any part of an ordinance, is guilty of a 
class 2 misdemeanor. Each day during which the illegal erection, construction, 
reconstruction, alteration, maintenance or use continues is a separate offense.
D. A county may establish civil penalties for a violation of any zoning regulation or 
ordinance. Civil penalties shall not exceed the amount of the maximum fine for a 
class 2 misdemeanor. Each day of continuance of the violation constitutes a 
separate violation. If an alleged violator is served with a notice of violation pursuant 
to subsection E of this section, the alleged violator is not subject to a criminal 
charge arising out of the same facts.
E. A county that establishes a civil penalty for violation of a zoning regulation or 
ordinance may appoint hearing officers to hear and determine zoning violations. If 
the zoning inspector reports a zoning violation to the hearing officer, the hearing 
officer shall hold a hearing after serving notice of the hearing on the alleged 
violator. The notice shall be personally served on the alleged violator by the zoning 
inspector at least five days before the hearing. If the zoning inspector is unable to 
personally serve the notice, the notice may be served in the same manner 
prescribed for alternative methods of service by the Arizona rules of civil procedure. 
A notice served on the alleged violator other than by personal service shall be 
served at least thirty days before the hearing.
F. At the hearing, the zoning inspector shall present evidence showing the existence 
of a zoning violation and the alleged violator or the alleged violator's attorney or 
other designated representative shall be given a reasonable opportunity to present 
evidence. The county attorney may present evidence on behalf of the zoning 
inspector. At the conclusion of the hearing, the hearing officer shall determine 
whether a zoning violation exists and, if a violation is found to exist, may impose 
civil penalties pursuant to subsection D of this section.



G. A hearing officer may be an employee of the county and shall be appointed by 
the board of supervisors. A review of decisions of the hearing officer by the board of 
supervisors shall be available to any party to the hearing. The board of supervisors 
may delegate this review to a county board of adjustment. If the board of 
supervisors elects to delegate this review, the board of supervisors shall delegate 
all requested reviews to the board of adjustment. The board of supervisors shall 
adopt written rules of procedure for the hearing and review of hearings, which shall 
be adopted in the same manner as zoning ordinances. Judicial review of the final 
decisions of the board of supervisors or a board of adjustment shall be pursuant to 
title 12, chapter 7, article 6. A county that establishes civil penalties for a violation 
of a zoning regulation or ordinance is not precluded from pursuing the remedies as 
provided for in subsection H of this section.
H. If any building or structure is or is proposed to be erected, constructed, 
reconstructed, altered, maintained or used or any land is or is proposed to be used 
in violation of this chapter or any ordinance, regulation or provision enacted or 
adopted by the board under the authority granted by this chapter, the board, the 
county attorney, the inspector or any adjacent or neighboring property owner who 
is specially damaged by the violation, in addition to the other remedies provided by 
law, may institute injunction, mandamus, abatement or any other appropriate 
action or proceedings to prevent or abate or remove the unlawful erection, 
construction, reconstruction, alteration, maintenance or use. 



   

ARF-2663     Regular Agenda Item      4. F.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: FY 14-15 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

6-26-14 to
6-25-15

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Bid No. 041414 Bulk Fuel and Lubricants.

Background Information
On June 24, 2014, the Board of Supervisors awarded the fuel portion of Bid No.
041414 - Bulk Fuel and Lubricants, to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and
qualified bidder, Canyon State Oil.

Addendum No. 1 to Invitation for Bid (IFB) No. 041414 was issued on May 19, 2014 in
response to questions which had been submitted by prospective bidders.  In response
to one of the questions, Gila County stated that the award of the fuel and lubricants
would not be split among bidders.  All four vendors who submitted a sealed bid for
Invitation for Bid No. 041414, acknowledged receipt of both addenda that were issued
on this IFB.

Evaluation
Bids were received from four (4) suppliers.  Three of the four bidders provided pricing
for both fuel and lubricants, and one bidder provided pricing for lubricants only.  Bid
responses were evaluated in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-2533, Competitive Sealed
Bidding; awards shall be made to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose
bid conforms in all material respects to the requirements and criteria set forth in the
Invitation for Bid.

Conclusion
The Finance and Public Works Departments have thoroughly reviewed and evaluated
the bids submitted for Bid No. 041414 Bulk Fuel and Lubricants, and have determined
that Canyon State Oil is the overall lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 
Amendment No. 1 has been issued to Canyon State Oil to correct the award of fuel
only on Invitation for Bid No. 041414; and to include the Lubricant portion of the
Invitation to Bid No. 041414 and thereby award the entire contract for Bulk Fuel and
Lubricants to Canyon State Oil.  If authorization is granted, Amendment No. 1 is
attached to this agenda item for the Board's approval.



Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the award of Invitation for
Bids No. 041414 for both bulk fuel and lubricants to Canyon State Oil - for a term of
12 months, from June 26, 2014, to June 25, 2015, with the option for two (2) one-
(1) year contract term renewals; additionally, staff recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 041414 - Bulk Fuel and
Lubricants.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the award of the lubricant portion
for Invitation for Bids No. 041414 for the purchase and delivery of bulk lubricants;
award to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize
the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Canyon State Oil, which will allow
for the award of both fuel and lubricants on Contract No. 041414.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 041414
IFB 041414 Bid Tabulation Form
Addenda 1 & 2 for IFB 041414 Bulk Fuel & Lubricants
Contract 041414 Bulk Fuel & Lubricants
Legal Explantion











































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2658     Regular Agenda Item      4. G.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: FY 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

180 Calendar
Days from Notice
to Proceed

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Invitation for Bid No.012114 for the 2nd Floor Renovation for the
School Superintendent's and Assessor's Offices.

Background Information
In order to implement some of the recommended modifications in the 2013 amended
Long Range Facilities Management Plan, and to help mitigate some of the space
constraints of the County, the Community Development staff architect along with help
from the Facilities Manager, drafted plans and a scope of work for the Invitation for
Bid (IFB) to renovate the 2nd floor of the Globe Courthouse to move the School
Superintendent's Office to the second floor in order to provide space on the first
floor for the County Attorney's Office and Child Support Division.   

At the May 6, 2014 Board of Supervisors meeting, the Board authorized the
advertisement of IFB No. 012114 for the 2nd floor renovations for the School
Superintendent's and Assessor's Offices.  The IFB was posted in the Arizona Silver Belt
newspaper on May 14, 2014, and May 21, 2014.

Evaluation
In 2007, Gila County began the process of developing a Long Range Facilities
Management Plan to accommodate County needs and growth. At the August 6, 2013
Board of Supervisors meeting, the Board authorized staff to explore various
alternatives for acquiring additional office space. On October 23, 2013, Gila County
contracted with L. Brevick Enterprises, Inc. to bring current the 2007 Long Range
Facilities Plan and amend the existing Facilities Management Plan which would
facilitate the exploration of space alternatives for the County.  L. Brevick Enterprises
prepared the 2007 Facilities Management Plan and was considered by staff to be the
best consultant available to amend the plan and provide a new report.

One of the modifications suggested in the Long Range Facilities Management Plan was



One of the modifications suggested in the Long Range Facilities Management Plan was
to renovate the second floor of the Globe Courthouse in order to eliminate the
Michaelson Building in downtown Globe from the County inventory.  The County
Attorney utilizes that building for many of their attorneys.  By implementing this part
of the plan, the Counties attorneys will be consolidated into one building, this will
eliminate travel time between the Michaelson building and the Courthouse, and
reduce utilities and maintenance costs that were incurred by providing offices for the
attorneys in multiple facilities.

Conclusion
Bids were received from six contractors.  Bid responses were evaluated in accordance
with A.R.S. §41-2533, Competitive Sealed Bidding; awards shall be made to the lowest
responsible and responsive bidder whose bid conforms in all material respects to the
requirements and criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bid.

The proposals were reviewed and evaluated both by conformity to submittal
requirements and technical requirements.  There were three minor omissions in the
lowest responsible and responsive bid.  The bidder failed to sign the bid proposal (Page
GP-56) on the proper signature line and failed to sign the bid bond (Page GP-57) and
contract (Page GP-69). The bidder has since corrected those omissions and the
documents are attached to this agenda item within his bid.  None of these omissions
materially affected lowest responsible and responsive bid.

Upon review by Bryan Chambers of the County Attorney's Office, Mr. Chambers felt
that the Board of Supervisors could accept the bid contingent upon the contractor
fixing the three omissions noted above.  Mr. Chambers also stated that the Board of
Supervisors may decide to award this contract or reject all bids and rebid the project
with alterations to try to get the price down.

Recommendation
After extensive review of submitted proposals, staff recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the award of Invitation for Bid No. 012114 for the 2nd floor
renovation for the School Superintendent's and Assessor's Offices to Kroll Contractors
Inc. for a contract amount of $375,276, with the following three corrections having
been made to the bid submitted by Kroll Contractors, Inc. on June 18, 2014:

Kroll Contractors, Inc. erroneously signed the Bid Proposal (Page GP-56) in the wrong
place and has since corrected the mistake;
Kroll Contractors, Inc. failed to sign their Bid Bond (Page GP-57) and has since
corrected the mistake; and
Kroll Contractors, Inc. failed to sign the Construction Contract (Page GP-69) and has
since corrected the mistake.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids



Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids
No. 012114 for the 2nd floor renovation for the School Superintendent's and
Assessor's Offices; award to the lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder; and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning bidder. 
(Jeff Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Contract No. 012114-2nd Floor Renovation for the Schools and Assessors Offices
Bid Results
Addendum 3 Courthouse 2nd Floor Renovation
Addendum 2 Courthouse 2nd Floor Renovation
Addendum 1 Courthouse 2nd Floor Renovation
Legal Explanation

































































































































































      BID  

TITLE:

      BID              DUE

      NO.: DATE:
 

EE: 308,500

3

2

Woodruff Construction (Wade)                                                                                                 

Wade.Woodruff@woodruffaz.com                                                                 

480-921-1925                                             

No Bid

5D Mining & Construction (Ben)                                                        

5dben@live.com                                                                 

928-425-2998                                             

No Bid

SDB, Inc. (Doyle)                                                                                                       

Doyle.Kahabka@sdb.com                                                                 

480-967-5810                                             

Oddonetto Construction (Tiffany)                                                           

tmartin@oddonetto.net                                                                             

928-425-3608                                                                                                                       

No Bid

Visus Engineering (Richard)                                                           

rsmith@visusinc.com                                                                             

480-833-8268                                                                                                                       

No Bid

QUOTE TABULATION FORM

GILA COUNTY

Centennial Contractors (Jared)                                                             

jlundy@cce-inc.com                                                                              

602-230-9987                                                                                                                         

No Bid

IFB 012114-Globe Courthouse 2nd Floor Renovations-Schools & Assessors

Dream Pole Construction (Tim)                                                           

timhumphrey.59@gmail.com                                                                             

928-701-1455                                                                                                                       

No Bid

$386,646.66 

Rodriguez Construction                                                         

rodriguezconst@hotmail.com                                                                 

928-425-7244                                             

R

A

N

K

I

N

G

La Casa Bella Builders (Shane)                                           

lacasabellabuilders@yahoo.com                                                          

928-425-2450

012114 06-18-14/3:00 P.M.

Hunter & Hunter Construction (Karen)                                               

k hunter44@cableone.net                                                             

928-425-6515

$392,000.00 

No Bid

BIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT

No Bid



1

4

5

6

Sky Engineering (Michael)                                                                                                               

mikeg@skyengineering.net                                                               

602-595-4178                                           

$449,360.00 

Caymus Corporation (Curt)                                                                                                               

rringleb@caymusaz.com                                                               

480-203-6108                                           

$404,710.00 

SD Crane (Adrian)                                                                                                               

adrian@methodaz.com                                                               

602-690-5940                                           

$441,142.76 

Kroll Contractors, Inc. (Bernard)                                                                                                               

Bernard@krollcontractorsinc.com                                                                 

480-226-2458                                             

$375,276.00 

Blackhawk Construction (Matt)                                                                                                               

Mwilliams@blackhawkconstructionaz.com                                                                 

480-584-3948                                             

No Bid

McKenna Contracting (Dave)                                                                                                               

dave@mckenna-contracting.com                                                                 

602-478-5773                                           

No Bid



INVITATION FOR BIDS NO. 012114 
ADDENDUM #3 

 
 

GILA COUNTY GLOBE COURTHOUSE: 

SECOND FLOOR RENOVATION: SCHOOLS AND ASSESSOR OFFICES 

INVITATION FOR BIDS NO. 012114 
 

ADDENDUM No. 3:   

DATE: 6/12/2014 

 

 

CLARIFICATIONS: 

1. No additional office space shall be provided for the contractors use. Construction limits are as identified 

in the Special Provisions of the General Provisions and as shown on the drawings. 

2. Yes, all new flooring is to be continuous under millwork. 

3. Yes, all new and modified flooring areas are to receive vinyl base, except the porcelain tile areas which 

are to receive tile cove base, as specified in the Technical Specifications. 

4. All new millwork shall have a millwork finished base, no vinyl base required. 

 

 

This concludes Addendum No. 3 to Invitation for Bids No. 012114. 



INVITATION FOR BIDS NO. 012114 
ADDENDUM #2 

 
 

GILA COUNTY GLOBE COURTHOUSE: 

SECOND FLOOR RENOVATION: SCHOOLS AND ASSESSOR OFFICES 

INVITATION FOR BIDS NO. 012114 
 

ADDENDUM No. 2:   

DATE: 6/6/2014 

 

 

CLARIFICATIONS: 

1. All Vinyl Tile Flooring shall be “Luxury Vinyl Tile” as specified in the Technical Specifications. 

 

REVISIONS: 

2. Room Finish Schedule (Drawing Sheet A1): Add Existing Back Hallway.  

 Ceiling: New as already shown on Reflected Ceiling Plan.  

 Floor: Change to remove existing, replace with Luxury Vinyl Tile flooring.  

 Walls:  Add painting of all drywall walls to match.  

 

 

This concludes Addendum No. 2 to Invitation for Bids No. 012114. 











 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-2672     Regular Agenda Item      4. H.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  
Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-1/Agreement between Gila
County, Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and
Freeport-McMoRan.

Background Information
On February 28, 2014, Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District
(CDWID) applied to Freeport-McMoRan for a grant in the amount of
$50,000 for repairs and improvements to the existing water system that
feeds water to approximately 550 County residents in Ice House and
Kellner Canyon, and which had previously been managed by the City of
Globe.  CDWID was awarded the grant on May 16, 2014.

Evaluation
Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold Foundation awarded a grant to the
Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District (CDWID) on May 16, 2014,
in the amount of $35,000, for repairs and improvements to an existing
water system that feeds water to approximately 550 County residents. 
The check was made payable to the County of Gila.  Intergovernmental
Agreement No. 061714-1/Agreement is being executed to allow Gila
County to transmit the funds to CDWID.

Additionally, another $15,000 will be provided by Freeport-McMoRan to
CDWID through the same grant once Freeport-McMoRan has received a
sustainability plan from CDWID, and the plan has been reviewed and
approved by Freeport-McMoRan. 

Conclusion
The execution of Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-1/Agreement



The execution of Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-1/Agreement
between Gila County, Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and
Freeport-McMoRan will allow for the County of Gila to transmit the grant
funds to the grant recipient - the Canyon Domestic Water Improvement
District.

Recommendation
Staff recommends the approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No.
061714-1/Agreement in order to transmit up to $50,000 in grant monies,
made payable to the County of Gila to the Canyon Domestic Water
Improvement District, the recipient of the grant, from Freeport-McMoRan.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement
No. 061714-1/Agreement between Gila County, Canyon Domestic Water
Improvement District and Freeport-McMoRan in order to allow Gila
County to transmit an amount of up to $50,000 in grant monies provided
by Freeport-McMoRan to the recipient of the grant, Canyon Domestic
Water Improvement District; and to authorize the Chairman's signature
on Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-1/Agreement.  (Jeff Hessenius)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-1
Freeport-McMoRan award letter
Legal Explanation
Legal Explanation IGA



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT NO.  061714-1 
 BETWEEN GILA COUNTY AND CANYON DOMESTIC WATER IMPROVEMEMT DISTRICT and 

AGREEMENT WITH FREEPORT-MCMORAN COPPER AND GOLD FOUNDATION 
 
 
 THIS  AGREEMENT  is made and entered into effective this    day of ____________________, 
2014 by and between Gila County, hereinafter referred to as “County” and the Canyon Domestic Water 
Improvement District, hereinafter referred to as “the District,” and Freeport McMoRan Copper and 
Gold Foundation. 
 
 
                                                                                     RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the District, a County Improvement District pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-901 et. seq. 

with full authority to act pursuant to A.R.S. § 1014 et. seq. on its own without any pre-approval from 
the County, applied for a grant from the Freeport McMoRan Copper and Gold Foundation in the 
name of the County, and  

 
WHEREAS, the District through Gila County was awarded $35,000.00 from the Freeport 

McMoRan Copper and Gold Foundation in the form of a check to the County in support of the Canyon 
Domestic Water Improvement District Aging System Repair project; and  

 
WHEREAS, Freeport McMoRan Copper and Gold Foundation will provide an additional 

$15,000.00 to the District once a sustainability plan is submitted to and reviewed by the committee 
of the Freeport McMoRan Copper and Gold Foundation so long as such plan is submitted by 
November 1, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County desires for the District to receive these funds in order to support the 

Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District Aging System Repair project and the Board of 
Supervisors of the County has determined that the  Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District 
Aging System Repair project will further the economic development potential of Gila County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County has determined that the purpose of Canyon Domestic Water 
Improvement District Aging System Repair project is public and that  the  expenditure  of  these  
funds  will  improve  or  enhance  the  economic  welfare of  the inhabitants of the County. 
 
 
 

                                                                           SCOPE 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this agreement, 
and of the mutual benefits to result therefrom, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1. The County will receive the $35,000.00 from the Freeport McMoRan Copper and Gold 
Foundation and transmit such funds to the District for use according to the terms and conditions of 
the June 4, 2014, Freeport McMoRan Copper and Gold Foundation grant award letter which is 
incorporated by this reference.  Additionally, another $15,000.00 will be provided by Freeport 
McMoRan to the District, through the same grant, once Freeport McMoRan has received a 
sustainability plan from the District, and the plan has been reviewed and approved by Freeport 
McMoRan. 
 
2. The District will be solely responsible to the Freeport McMoRan Copper and Gold Foundation 
for compliance with the terms and conditions outlined in the June 4, 2014, Freeport McMoRan 
Copper and Gold Foundation grant award letter. 
 









 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-2680     Regular Agenda Item      4. I.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr. 
Submitted By: Sherry Grice, Executive Assistant, Board of

Supervisors-District 2
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 14-07-04 declaring a state of emergency
within Gila County as a result of insfrastructure and property damage
caused by abnormally heavy monsoon rain and winds.

Background Information
N/A

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-07-04
declaring a state of emergency within Gila County as a result of
infrastructure and property damage caused by abnormally heavy
monsoon rain and winds.
(Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Resolution No. 14-07-04



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-07-04 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 

COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING A STATE OF EMERGENCY 

WITHIN GILA COUNTY AS A RESULT OF INFRASTRUCTURE AND 

PROPERTY DAMAGE CAUSED BY ABNORMALLY HEAVY 

MONSOON RAIN AND WINDS. 

 

WHEREAS, due to heavy rainfall and high winds, Gila County, Arizona is experiencing 

dangerous and damaging flooding conditions; 

   

WHEREAS, due to the flooding and high winds, severe public and private infrastructure and 

property damage has occurred; and  

 

WHEREAS, by the adoption of this resolution, the Chairman of the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors is authorized to declare an emergency. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors does hereby declare 

that an emergency now exists in Gila County, as provided for in Arizona Revised Statutes 

(A.R.S.) §26-311, resulting in the following:   

 

a. All Gila County government resources are ready and available to restore and repair public 

and private infrastructure and property.  

 

b. The Chairman of the Board of Supervisors will work closely with the Director of Public 

Works to identify and implement the location and extent of the restoration and repair work to 

be done.  

 

c. Mutual aid and cooperation from appropriate related agencies may be requested. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution directs Gila County staff to assist County 

citizens with damaged or impassable roads as provided in A.R.S. §26-311, and that this 

resolution is in effect for the duration of the monsoon season through September 30, 2014. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 15
th

 day of July 2014. 

 

Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

______________________________ __________________________________  

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 



   
ARF-2641     Consent Agenda Item      5. A.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 4 to Weatherization Low Income Assistance Agreement No. SW-ESA-2182-02Y4 with the Governor's
Office of Energy Policy.

Background Information
On July 17, 2012, the Board of Supervisors approved a Weatherization Low Income Assistance Agreement OEP
Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2.

On April 2, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract  No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2.

On August 6, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to Contract No.  SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3. 
On this Amendment, the last 3 digits of this contract changed to 2Y3.

On February 4, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 3 to Contract No.  SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3.

On Amendment No. 4, the last 3 digits changed to "2Y4."

Evaluation
Amendment No. 4 will provide up to $7,150 in additional funding as a reimbursement ceiling for Fiscal Year 15,
inclusive of administrative, health & safety, and program operations.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving this Amendment, the Gila County Weatherization Program will receive
additional funding to be used for administrative, health & safety, and program operations.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
Amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 4 to a Weatherization Low Income Assistance Agreement (Contract No.
SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4) between the State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy (OEP) and the Gila County
Community Services Division, Housing Services, whereby OEP will provide up to $7,150 in additional funding as a
reimbursement ceiling for Fiscal Year 2015, for the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

Attachments
Amendment No. 4 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
Amendment No. 3 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
Amendment No. 2 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
Amendment No. 1 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
OEP Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
Legal Explanation

































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2653     Consent Agenda Item      5. B.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Department: Community Services Division Division: GEST Department

Information
Request/Subject
Revised Signature Page to an Application to Apply for a Contract with Arizona Department of Economic
Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration.

Background Information
On March 18, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved the submission of an application to apply for a
contract with the Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration
(ADES/RSA).

Evaluation
On June 24, 2014, a revised signature page was received by Gila Employment and Special Training
Program (GEST) from ADES/RSA. 

The revision changed the original wording under the section Contract Term, from "This contract shall be
effective on the date of last signature and shall end on September 30, 2019." to read , "This contract
shall be effective October 1, 2014, or on the date of last signature whichever is later and shall terminate
on September 30, 2019."

Conclusion
By signing the revised signature page, Gila County GEST Program will be in compliance with said
request from ADES/RSA.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve and sign the revised signature page as requested by ADES/RSA.

Suggested Motion
Approval to sign and replace the signature page on a Contract Application between Gila County d/b/a
Gila Employment and Special Training Program (GEST) and the Arizona Department of Economic
Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration (ADES/RSA), which was previously approved by the
Board of Supervisors on March 18, 2014, changing the section Contract Term to October 1, 2014, or on
the date of last signature, whichever is later and shall terminate on September 30, 2019.

Attachments
Revised signature page to an Application for RSA DES
Original signature page to an Appliation for RSA DES
GEST Application RSA Contract DES

















































































































































   
ARF-2655     Consent Agenda Item      5. C.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2014 - 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 014-0444 Pinal Gila Council For Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging, Region V.

Background Information
For the past 11 years, Gila County Housing has received funding from Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area
Agency on Aging.

On July 16, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract No. 014-0444.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 will amend the contract dated July 1, 2013, to render services from July 1, 2014, through June
30, 2015.

The contract amount will be $6,242 which will be used to provide emergency minor home repair to eligible citizens
residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
By approving Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 014-0444, Gila County Housing Services will receive funding to
assist eligible citizens with emergency minor home repairs.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 014-0444 between the Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area
Agency on Aging, Region V, (PGCSC) and the Division of Community Services, Housing Services, whereby PGCSC
will provide funding in the amount of $6,242 to be used for emergency minor home repair to eligible citizens residing
in Gila County effective July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

Attachments
Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 014-0444
Contract No. 014-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging
Legal Explanation











































































































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-2627     Consent Agenda Item      5. D.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  

Submitted For: Paula Horn 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Prevention Services, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Prevention Services
Fiscal Year: 2014-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July, 1 2014 through June 30, 2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. ADHS14-072102 with Arizona Department of Health Services.

Background Information
The Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG060003) was approved by the Board of Supervisors on July 20,
2009, in the amount of $135,000 for the contract period July 1, 2009, through June 30, 2010.

Amendment No. 1 extended the contract period from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011, in the amount of $135,000.

Amendment No. 2 extended the contract period from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012, in the amount of $135,000.

Amendment No. 3 extended the contract period from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013, in the amount of $135,000.

Replacement contract No. ADHS14-072102 will be in effect from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017.  Arizona
Procurement office has changed the contract number due to electronic system updates. 

Evaluation
This funding will allow the Gila County Department of Health to continue and provide the Tobacco Free
Environments program.  This program uses the following strategies: prevent initiation of tobacco use among youth,
eliminate exposure to secondhand smoke, promote cessation services to help smokers quit, and reduce one of the
four leading causes of chronic disease death in Arizona through advancement of school health policies.   

Conclusion
Approval of this Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-072102) will allow the Gila County Health
Department to continue to provide tobacco free education and support to Gila County residents.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Director of Health & Emergency Services that the Board of Supervisors
approve Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-072102) with the Arizona Department of Health
Services in the amount of $135,000 to extend tobacco free program services from July 1, 2014, through June 30,
2017.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-072102) between the Arizona Department of Health
Services and the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services in the amount of $135,000 to continue to
provide Tobacco Free Environments Program services from July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2017.

Attachments
IGA (Contract No. ADHS14-072102)
Legal Explanation





















































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-2634     Consent Agenda Item      5. E.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Administrative Clerk, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Order to Cancel Precinct Committeeman Elections.

Background Information
ARS 16-410 provides that if the total number of persons who file a
nomination petition for a candidate and the number of persons who filed
a nomination paper for a write-in candidate is less than or equal to the
number of positions to be filled, the county board of supervisors may
cancel the election no earlier than seventy-five days before the election
and appoint the person or persons who filed the nomination petition or
nomination paper.  A person who is appointed pursuant to this
subsection is fully vested with the powers and duties of the office as if
elected to that office.

Evaluation
Precinct committeeman elections are covered by this statute. 

Conclusion
In those precincts where the number of candidates filing nomination
petitions or write-in nomination papers is less than equal to the number
of positions available, it is permissible to cancel these elections.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends the Board of Supervisors approve
the Order to cancel precinct elections and appoint the precinct
committeemen shown on Attachment A.

Suggested Motion
Adoption of an Order canceling precinct elections and appointing the



Adoption of an Order canceling precinct elections and appointing the
precinct committeemen as shown on Attachment A of the Order, who have
filed nomination petitions or nomination papers for precinct
committeeman of their party in the precinct shown. 

Attachments
Order
ARS 16-410













   
ARF-2654     Consent Agenda Item      5. F.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  
Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for May 2014

Submitted For: Kaycee Stratton 
Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Chief Deputy Recorder, Recorder's Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for May 2014

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted by
the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder''s Monthly Report for May 2014





















   
ARF-2675     Consent Agenda Item      5. G.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  
Reporting
Period:

June 10, 2014, and July 1, 2014

Submitted By: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk, Clerk of
the Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
June 10, 2014, and July 1, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 10, 2014, and July 1, 2014, Board of Supervisors'
meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 07-01-14 Meeting Minutes
BOS 06-10-14 Meeting Minutes



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  July 1, 2014 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Marian E. Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Clerk of the Board 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Bradley Beauchamp, County Attorney; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of 
the Board.   
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  

  
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Jacque Griffin led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Cheryl Sluyter delivered the invocation. 
 
Item 2 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:   

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL-14-04, a 
liquor license application submitted by Ralph N. Killmer for a new Series 
10 Beer & Wine License with an interim permit at Killmer's Kountry Store 
located north of Globe.   
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, advised that Ralph Killmer submitted an 
application to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) for 
a new Series 10 Beer and Wine Store liquor license at Killmer’s Kountry Store.  
The statutory process requires that the local governing body conduct a public 
hearing and thereafter issue a recommendation for approval, disapproval or a 
“no recommendation” to the DLLC.  In addition to the application fee, Mr. 
Killmer has paid a fee to operate the business under the current owner’s liquor 
license until a decision has been rendered by the DLLC.  The current license 
owner is Jan R. Reynolds.  Ms. Sheppard stated that the County has an 
internal review process in order to determine if all other County permitting 
requirements are being met.  The Planning and Zoning Department and the 
Health Department have approved this application.  Ms. Sheppard notified the 
Board that she has not received any written objection to this application.  

Page 1 of 12 
 



Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing at this time.  No public comments 
were given; therefore, he closed the public hearing and asked the Board 
members to make a motion on this agenda item. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin made a motion to approve Order No. LL-14-04, a liquor 
license application submitted by Ralph N. Killmer for a new Series 10 Beer & 
Wine Store License with an interim permit to operate the license at Killmer's 
Kountry Store located north of Globe.  Supervisor Marcanti seconded her 
motion which was unanimously approved by the Board. 
 
The application will be forwarded to the DLLC for final review and approval.   
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL-14-05, an 
application submitted by Ray Stephens, Jr. for a new Series 13 Domestic 
Farm Winery License for Trident Winery located in Pine.   
 
Ms. Sheppard advised that this application must follow the same statutory 
requirements as the previous agenda item which includes conducting a public 
hearing.  She provided some background information regarding the applicant.  
On May 6, 2014, the Board of Supervisors issued a Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) to Mr. Stephens which allows him to add a wine making business to his 
current cannery business at his property located in Pine.  The Board approved 
the CUP providing that 7 stipulations were met of which one of the stipulations 
requires that Mr. Stephens obtain a Domestic Farm Winery License from the 
DLLC.   Ms. Sheppard notified the Board that she has not received any written 
objection to this application.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing at 
this time.  No public comments were given; therefore, he closed the public 
hearing and asked the Board members to make a motion on this agenda item. 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Order No. LL-14-05, an application submitted by 
Ray Stephens, Jr. for a new Series 13 Domestic Farm Winery License for 
Trident Winery located in Pine.   
 
The application will be forwarded to the DLLC for final review and approval. 
 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Standard Software 
Maintenance Agreement between Gila County and New World Systems 
Corporation in the amount of $422,810 plus sales tax for a four-year term 
from July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2018, to provide continued maintenance 
on the County licensed New World application packages.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, advised that this contract allows 
New World Systems Corporation to provide continued maintenance on the 

Page 2 of 12 
 



County licensed New World application packages.  The New World System is an 
accounting software program that is utilized by the County.  Supervisor 
Marcanti inquired if the pricing would be the same to provide maintenance 
services on the New World System if an invitation for bids were to be issued 
today by the County?  Mr. Hessenius replied that the pricing would be the 
same for the maintenance services; however, the upfront costs for a similar 
accounting system would cost almost $1M.  Supervisor Marcanti then asked, 
“Is everyone was happy with the system?”  Mr. Hessenius replied that, in 
general, the system meets all of the County’s needs.  He added that there may 
be a better system; however, it would be at a higher price than the price paid 
by the County for its current system.  Chairman Pastor wanted assurance that 
the agreement was not being renewed because it was a “cheaper” system.  Kelly 
Riggs, Information Technology Department Manager, replied that the system 
meets the County’s expectations from a financial standpoint, and it is 
integrated with other systems being utilized by the County.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved a Standard Software Maintenance Agreement between 
Gila County and New World Systems Corporation in the amount of $422,810 
plus sales tax for a four-year term from July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2018, to 
provide continued maintenance on the County licensed New World application 
packages. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement among the Pima County School Superintendent, the Maricopa 
County School Superintendent, the Yavapai County School 
Superintendent, the Gila County School Superintendent and the Navajo 
County School Superintendent to establish the Arizona Education and 
Technology Consortium for the purpose of establishing, managing, and 
operating an interactive television system for the purpose of providing 
instructional services to students, professional development services to 
education professionals, and to assign a Fiscal Agent for the Consortium, 
to become effective on the date of final signature and terminate on June 
30, 2019.   
 
Dr. Linda O'Dell, School Superintendent, advised that this agreement allows 
Gila County an opportunity to partner with other Arizona County School 
Superintendents to establish the Consortium, which allows all participating 
counties to “ramp up” the use of interactive television not only for distance 
learning for students across the state, but also for professional development 
services for education professionals for meetings, etc.  Each Supervisor 
complimented Dr. O’Dell on this endeavor.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 
approved the Intergovernmental Agreement among the Pima County School 
Superintendent, the Maricopa County School Superintendent, the Yavapai 
County School Superintendent, the Gila County School Superintendent and 

Page 3 of 12 
 



the Navajo County School Superintendent to establish the Arizona Education 
and Technology Consortium. 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-07-02 
establishing the November 4, 2014, General Election for the voters to 
decide whether or not to continue the Gila County 1/2 Cent 
Transportation Excise Tax and to share the revenue with the city and 
towns in the County.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, advised that should the Board of Supervisors 
decide to adopt this resolution, it will conclude their official action on this 
matter.  He provided some background information on this issue.  In summary, 
he advised that a Citizens Committee was created by the Board of Supervisors 
and assigned the task of gathering information and issuing a recommendation 
to the Board on whether the ½ cent transportation excise tax should continue.  
The Committee issued a recommendation to the Board to continue the tax, and 
the Board thereafter disbanded the Committee.  Mr. McDaniel advised that the 
Board recently adopted a resolution that established the tax levy and the need 
for the tax.  This resolution would establish the election date.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin emphasized the importance of continuing the tax in 
order to meet all of the County’s infrastructure needs and to make up for the 
shortfall in HURF (Highway User Revenue Fund) funding that was previously 
provided to Gila County by the State of Arizona.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated, “There is no tax that is a good tax, but in this case 
it is for the use of the roadways, so it all helps out.”   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired as to the status of the informational brochure 
(entitled Gila County Transportation Study) that was being prepared by Kimley 
Horn for the public’s use.  Mr. McDaniel replied that the brochure was 
completed, and he advised that in the near future a voter pamphlet will be sent 
to all households within the County which will contain arguments for and 
against the continuance of the tax and a brief summary of the purpose of the 
tax.  For the record, Chairman Pastor advised that he had a phone 
conversation with Jerry Ellison Sr., a local citizen.  Mr. Ellison is opposed to 
the continuance of the tax, and Chairman Pastor assured Mr. Ellison that his 
opposition to the tax would be noted in these minutes.  Chairman Pastor also 
advised that Mr. Ellison believes that the County is withholding information 
from the public with regard to this issue.  Chairman Pastor commented that he 
feels the County has made extensive efforts to provide the public with 
information on this subject.  Chairman Pastor advised that Mr. Ellison has 
requested that the Board schedule a meeting at Holiday Hills (Mobile Home 
Park) to discuss this issue.  Jacque Griffin, County Librarian/Assistant County 
Manager, advised that copies of the informational brochure have been sent to 
the local libraries and have been distributed throughout the Courthouse.  She 

Page 4 of 12 
 



also added that upon the Board’s adoption of the resolution, she would ensure 
that the informational brochure is also posted to the County’s website.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 14-07-02 establishing the 
November 4, 2014, General Election for the voters to decide whether or not to 
continue the Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax and to share the 
revenue with the city and towns in the County.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to purchase the NAPA Auto Parts 
property at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, Arizona, in an amount not to 
exceed $450,500 and authorize the Chairman to sign all required 
documents.   
 
Mr. McDaniel advised that the Board of Supervisors addressed this item at its 
June 24th meeting.  At that time it was the County staff’s recommendation that 
the Board continue this item to a future work session in order to allow time for 
the consultant (Lonnie Brevick of L. Brevick Enterprises, Inc., who created the 
Gila County Long-Range Facilities Management Plan) to provide the Board with 
an amendment to the Plan which contains detailed information on some 
potential properties that the Board may consider for purchase and the square 
footage needs for all of Gila County’s departments and elected offices.  He 
concluded by stating that the Board voted to continue this item to today’s 
meeting.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin began the discussion by stating that, in her opinion, 
this is a necessary purchase to obtain additional County space in northern Gila 
County as she is unaware of any other available space.  Steve Stratton, Public 
Works Division Director, advised that no changes have been made to the 
County’s Long-Range Facilities Management Plan for northern Gila County 
since the Board last met.  He added that any proposed changes to the Plan 
affect southern Gila County and they will be presented to the Board at its July 
29th work session. 
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that it was his understanding that this property, 
which contains a building currently used by the NAPA auto parts store, would 
be purchased in order to create parking lot space for the County.  Even though 
Supervisor Marcanti acknowledged that County parking space was needed, he 
was not in favor of purchasing this property and demolishing the building in 
order to create additional parking space.  He suggested buying the property 
and either renting or leasing the building or remodeling it so that it could be 
used by County departments or elected offices until such time that the County 
had the available funds to build additional office space in northern Gila 
County.  
 

Page 5 of 12 
 



Mr. Stratton clarified that the initial suggestion to the Board was to use this 
property as a parking lot if a decision was made in the future by the Board to 
build a courthouse in northern Gila County.  In that case, the intent was to 
use this property as a temporary parking lot.  He added that the Board could 
direct staff to proceed with the purchase of this property and then assign other 
priorities for northern or southern Gila County until such time as the Board 
may decide to initiate a plan to build new court rooms in Payson.  Staff would 
then proceed to rent, lease or utilize the building for internal County needs as 
directed by the Board.  Mr. Stratton advised that he has not spoken with the 
property owner since May of this year.  At that time he told the owner that 
should the Board decide to purchase his property, there would be no urgency 
in vacating the building; the County would allow the owner to take up to 
several months to move so that he could prepare the new site that would be 
used to house the NAPA auto parts store.   Mr. Stratton further advised that 
multiple items were included in the newly adopted fiscal year budget to be 
utilized with Capital Improvement Projects funds; however, he is aware that 
there is not enough money in that fund to provide for all of the potential 
projects.  His intent was to list the projects and then the Board would choose 
which projects would be implemented.  He stated, “I think there was a 
misunderstanding to purchase this, demolish the building and use it as a 
parking lot.”   
 
Chairman Pastor acknowledged the need to complete some infrastructure 
projects in the Payson area; however, he did not want the Board to take any 
action on this proposed purchase until Mr. Brevick could present the Board 
with updated information on properties that could be considered for purchase, 
both in northern and southern Gila County, and the square footage of the 
County’s office space needs.  As an example, he stated that Mr. Brevick 
suggested purchasing the Chamber of Commerce building in Payson, which 
could be used to relocate the Sheriff’s Office administrative, dispatch and 
records personnel.  Mr. Stratton replied that project is currently in progress.  
Chairman Pastor and Mr. Stratton briefly discussed some other alternatives.  
Vice-Chairman Martin clarified that the $450,500 would not be used for the 
purchase of the Chamber building.  Her concern is the immediate need to 
provide improved security for the County Attorney’s Office and Probation 
Department’s personnel.  She advised that the option to purchase this property 
has been extended to the County by the owner 2-3 times, but he did not allow 
an extension the last time it was requested by the County.  She then provided 
various scenarios to relocate County personnel. 
 
Chairman Pastor believes there are available options that are outlined in the 
amended Long-Range Facilities Management Plan for the $450,500 to be spent 
on other properties in northern Gila County rather than purchasing the subject 
property.  He also added that it is his understanding that the property owner 
would not be negatively affected should the County decide to not purchase his 
property.  He announced that he was not in favor of purchasing this property 

Page 6 of 12 
 



at this time for $450,500 because he thinks it is important for Mr. Brevick to 
present the Board with the amended Long-Range Facilities Management Plan 
in order to be apprised of all of the County’s office space needs and to prioritize 
the potential projects. 
 
The Board members, Mr. McDaniel and Mr. Stratton discussed other options of 
which one was the possible purchase of a church; however, it has since been 
sold.  They also discussed the pros and cons of purchasing the subject 
property.  At the conclusion of the discussion, Chairman Pastor was not in 
favor of purchasing this property at this time because the County does not 
have enough available funding in the foreseeable future to build a courthouse 
building in Payson.  He emphasized that he does support spending $450,500 in 
the Payson area; however, he thinks it would be wise to first hear Mr. Brevick’s 
presentation on the amended Gila County Long-Range Facilities Management 
Plan.  It is also his understanding that the building on the subject property is 
not suitable for remodeling.  Supervisor Marcanti acknowledged that there are 
security issues with the current setup of the courtrooms in Payson and 
problems with other County departments and elected offices.  Given the fact 
that there are few available properties in northern Gila County, he felt that it 
was in the best interest of the County to purchase the subject property at this 
time provided that the building would not be demolished, but rather it would 
utilized by County personnel or rented or leased until such time funding 
becomes available to build court rooms, etc. in the Payson area.  Vice-
Chairman Martin agreed with Supervisor Marcanti’s recommendation to utilize 
the building and not tear it down.  She felt that minimal improvements could 
be made to the building which would allow the building to be occupied, either 
with County personnel or by renting or leasing the property to others.           
 
Vice-Chairman Martin moved to purchase the NAPA Auto Parts property at 110 
W. Main Street in Payson, Arizona, in an amount not to exceed $450,500 and 
authorize the Chairman to sign all required documents, which was seconded 
by Supervisor Marcanti.  Chairman Pastor voted against the purchase; 
therefore, the motion passed by a 2 to 1 vote. 
 
Item 4 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of Amendment No. 11 to Contract No. A11PC00100 between 
the Bureau of Indian Affairs and Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County 
Juvenile Detention Center, to increase the contract amount by $8,000, 
from $118,400.01 to $126,400.01.  
 
B.  Approval of a Request for Release of Funds between the Gila County 
Housing Services and the Arizona Department of Housing, which will allow 

Page 7 of 12 
 



Housing Services to request a release of funds for multiple contracts and 
multiple years if said contracts are awarded.  
 
C.  Approval of two Special Event Liquor License Applications submitted 
by Pine Strawberry Fuel Reduction, Inc. to serve liquor at the Fire on the 
Rim Mountain Bike Race fund-raising event to be held September 12-14, 
2014, and the fund-raising dinner to benefit Pine Strawberry Fuel 
Reduction wildfire prevention programs to be held on September 20, 
2014.  
 
D.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library of Pine, Arizona, to serve liquor 
at a fund-raising event to be held on October 11, 2014.  
 
E.  Approval to appoint Ken Volz, represented as a Citizen and head of the 
Gila County Personnel Commission, to the Correctional Officers 
Retirement Board (CORP) Local Board for Detention Officers and Non-
Uniformed Officers and to the CORP Local Board for Dispatchers to fill a 
vacancy for the term beginning July 1, 2014, through December 31, 2017; 
and to re-appoint Ed Carpenter, represented as a Citizen, to the same two 
CORP Local Boards for the term of November 2, 2014, through December 
31, 2015, in order to align Mr. Carpenters' term of service with the 
correct term of office.  
 
F.  Acknowledgment of the appointment of Ardith Hogan to the East 
Verde Park Fire District Governing Board to complete Mary Cambier's 
unexpired term of office through December 31, 2016.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of the February 2014 and May 2014 monthly activity 
report submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
H.  Acknowledgment of the April 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Recorder's Office.  
 
I.  Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  
 
J.  Approval of the May 27, 2014, and June 3, 2014, Board of Supervisors' 
meeting minutes.  
 
K.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
June 3, 2014, June 10, 2014, June 17, 2014, and June 24, 2014.  
 
JUNE 3, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 

Page 8 of 12 
 



1.  Joseph Dorame – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 05/28/14 – 
General Fund – DOH 10/28/13 
2.  Christine Ortiz – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 05/30/14 
– Public Works Fund – DOH 11/03/08 
3.  LeRoy Bagwell – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer II – 05/29/14 – Adult 
Probation Services Fees Fund – DOH 10/14/08 
4.  Jennifer Meyer – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 05/20/14 – 
State Aid Enhancement Fund – DOH 04/28/14 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
5.  Kimberly Bittner – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 06/24/14 – 
General Fund 
6.  Andressa Kumparak – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 06/24/14 – 
General Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
7.  April Fogle – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 05/20/14 – From 
General Fund – To State Enhancement Fund – Replacing Jennifer Meyer 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
8.  David Jones – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer Supervisor – 06/03/14 
– State Aid Enhancement (.50)/Adult Intensive Probation Supervision(.50) 
Funds – Extending probationary period for 6 months 
9.  Christian Leos – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary (underfill) – 
06/09/14 – Cost of Prosecution Reimbursement Fund – Temporary increase to 
29 hours week 
 
JUNE 10, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Mary Stemm – Library District – Temporary Library Assistant Senior – 
05/16/14 – Library Assistance Fund – DOH 04/28/14 
NEW HIRES: 
2.  Marina Cohn – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 06/16/14 – General Fund 
– Replacing Denise Doney 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
3.  Larry Speer – Assessor’s Office – Temporary Appraiser – 06/02/14 – General 
Fund – Temporary assignment through 08/01/14 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4.  Delia Ronquillo – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
06/02/14 – From Workforce Investment Act Fund – Workforce Investment Act 
Programs Fund 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
5.  Rebecca Taylor – Public Works – From Custodian (.48) – To Custodian (.85) 
– 06/16/14 – Facilities Management Fund – Replacing Brian Rogers 
 
JUNE 17, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Curtis Johnson – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 06/06/14 – 
General Fund – DOH 03/17/14 

Page 9 of 12 
 



NEW HIRES: 
2.  Daniel Sterling – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 06/23/14 – Fleet 
Management Fund – Replacing Derek Bartling 
3.  Adrian Marks – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
06/23/14 – Various Funds – Replacing Allison Torres 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4.  Rebecca Taylor – Public Works – Custodian (.85) – 07/27/14 – Facilities 
Management Fund  
OTHER ACTIONS: 
5.  Vanessa Amairia – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 06/24/14 – 
General Fund – Extending probationary period for 6 months 
REQUEST TO POST: 
6.  Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – Vacated by Curtis Johnson, 
Matthew Cruz and Tannyn Garcia 
7.  Community Development – Permit Technician – Vacated by Beverly 
Valenzuela  
 
JUNE 24, 2014 
DEPARTURES: 
1.  Larry Speer – Assessor’s Office – Temporary Property Appraiser 1 – 
06/18/14 – General Fund - DOH 06/02/14  
2.  Roland Boyer – Public Works – Materials Tester and Safety Representative – 
06/30/14 – Public Works Fund – DOH 04/16/07 
3.  Peter Licavoli – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff SRO – 06/06/14 – General 
Fund – DOH 08/21/06 
4.  Pamela Morgan-Moore – Clerk of the Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk – 
06/13/14 – General Fund – DOH 06/02/14 
NEW HIRES: 
5.  Kirby King – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 2 – 06/30/14 – General 
Fund – Replacing Jeremy Schnepf  
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
6.  Nyomi Sandle – Community Development – Temporary Clerk – General 
Fund 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
7.  Mark Warden – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Lead – 
07/27/14 – Facilities Management Fund 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
8.  Christopher Heath – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 07/07/14 – 
Fleet Management Fund – Extending probationary period for 6 months 
9.  Stephanie Dean – Library District – Temporary Library Community Liaison – 
07/01/14 – Library District Grants Fund – Extending employment through 
6/30/15 
10.  Gloria Thompson – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Program 
Coordinator – 07/01/14 – Library District Grants Fund – Extending 
employment through 6/30/15 
REQUEST TO POST: 

Page 10 of 12 
 



11.  Library District – Globe/Miami Temporary Early Literacy Community 
Liaison – Vacated by Delores Guerrero 
12.  Library District – Hayden/Winkelman Temporary Early Literacy 13.  
Community Liaison – Vacated by Amanda Aguirre 
13.  Library District – Payson/Star Valley/Pine/Strawberry/Tonto 
Basin/Roosevelt Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – Vacated by 
Robin Holt and Maxine Piper 
14.  Library District – Bylas Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – 
New grant position 
15.  Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk – Vacated by Pamela Morgan-
Moore 
16.  Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – Vacated by Christine Ortiz 
 
L.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of June 9, 2014, to June 
13, 2014.  
 
M.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the week of July 1, 
2014.  
 
July 1, 2014 
 
$396,151.11 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 262749 
through 262874.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
N.  Adoption of Resolution No. 14-06-09 (Amended), a resolution providing 
funding to be used for highway and street purposes including costs of 
right of way acquisitions and expenses related thereto and construction, 
reconstruction, maintenance, repair and roadside development of county, 
city and town roads, streets and bridges and payment of principal and 
interest on highway and street bonds, and for regional transportation 
projects that are included in the regional transportation plan of the 
County prepared by the County, any city, town or regional planning 
agency; and levying a transportation excise tax to provide moneys for said 
purposes.  Section 10. Effective Date; Time in Effect of the Resolution 
was amended to reflect some minor changes.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action item 4-A through 4-N. 
 
Item 5 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Page 11 of 12 
 



Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public.  
 
Item 6 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:10 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 

Page 12 of 12 
 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 10, 2014 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian; Marian E. 
Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
ABSENT:  Bryan B. Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Jacque Griffin led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 

A.  Information/Discussion regarding a proposed revised fee schedule for 
the Assessor's Office.  
 
Lisa Romo, Chief Deputy Assessor, stated that the Assessor’s Office seeks to 
increase various fees as outlined in the table shown below in order to keep up 
with the current economic times and be competitive with other counties’ fees 
for Assessor’s Office products and services.  She explained that 
interdepartmental or governmental inquiries can vary from minimal to labor 
intensive; they are random and seldom do they recur.  It has been customary 
to waive fees for these categories although some counties do charge for some of 
these services.    
 
Commercial services are data requests by parties who intend to use Assessor 
data for profit.  Commercial services can involve detailed preliminary research 
and the prolonged use of software.  Fees can be static and may also include 
additional charges for the time it takes to complete the records request which 

Page 1 of 5 
 



may include transmitting electronic data.  As commercial services are large, 
and can vary in scope, they constitute a significant drain on staff time and 
impede the flow of daily operations.  Fees for Commercial Services are 
established pursuant to A.R.S. § 39-121.03 which allows for the recovery of the 
commercial market value as best determined by the department delivering the 
services. 
 
Ms. Romo presented the following “Proposed Fee Schedule Changes” and 
comparison information with regard to other counties: 

 
Proposed Fee Schedule Changes 

 
Gila County Assessor Fee Schedule:   

General Services 
Current Proposed 

Copy/Printout (per page) 8.5 x 11 or 8.5 x 14 
includes property records & sketches, per page 

 
 

.25 

 
 

$1 
Faxes (must be paid in advance) $2.00 $3 plus $1 per page  

after 2 pages 
Map 8.5 x 11 (B&W) .25 $1 
Map 11 x 17 (B&W) .25 $1 
Map 18 x 24 (B&W) $3 $5 
Map 18 x 24 Mylar $5 $10 
Map 24 x 36 $10 $10 
Map 24 x 36 Mylar $10 $25 
Map 36 x 48 $10 $10 
Map CD (.tif file or CAD file) Entire County $50 $200 
Notary Service Free Free 
Gila County fee schedule: Commercial Services Current Proposed 
Affidavit of property value/sales file -- .txt 
format 

$200 $350 

Minimum charge is $25 per half hour (or $50 
hourly) with a half hour minimum for any 
commercial data request not specifically 
identified elsewhere 

$50/Hr.  $50/Hr. 

Data report (basic report)—Excel format $75 $200 
Data report (advanced report)—Excel format $150 $350 
Market/Cost Parcel DOR .txt format $250 $350 
Ownership – Excel format $50 $100 
Black and white prices as the Gila County Assessor does not offer a color 
option for those selections at this time. 
 
All map compact discs (CDs) are tested before sending.  The Assessor’s Office is 
not responsible if the purchaser’s computer system does not have the 
capability to view or print the items contained on the CD.  Some maps may be 

Page 2 of 5 
 



omitted from the CD due to work in progress.  There is no guarantee that a CD 
will contain every map.  Ownership data is not available on CD.   
 
Ms. Romo also stated that the Assessor’s Office proposes to continue not 
charging a fee to combine property parcels; however, a charge of $50 is being 
proposed to split property parcels.  She added that this proposed fee is only 
being presented for the Board of Supervisors’ consideration at this time.   
 
The Board agreed that it is not the intention of the County to make a profit on 
any of these types of fees and that it may be wise to incorporate pricing that is 
similar to the fees that are being charged by other Arizona counties’ Assessor’s 
Offices.  The County strives to keep all fees affordable to Gila County citizens.  
Chairman Pastor directed Don McDaniel, County Manager, to meet with staff 
from the Assessor’s Office to build on the foundation of a new proposed fee 
schedule that was presented this date.   
 
B.  Information/Discussion regarding acquiring property for a new animal 
shelter.   
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health and Emergency Services Division Director, stated 
that the current location of the Gila County Animal Shelter is required to be 
relocated because it is currently situated on land that is owned by the City of 
Globe and of which the building is owned by the Humane Society.  He stated 
that Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, has been working with 
Brent Billingsley, City of Globe Manager, to determine a viable agreement 
between the City of Globe and the County which would benefit the local 
community.   
 
Mr. Stratton showed an aerial photo of a 2 acre parcel which was an old well 
site.  He described the construction modifications to the land that would be 
necessary in order to create an ingress and egress to a new animal shelter 
building which would be completed by the County.  The City of Globe would be 
responsible to supply the running water and sewer to the property.  In 
discussions between Mr. McDaniel and Mr. Stratton, it was acknowledged that 
the City of Globe does not have any capital to invest in the building.  It was 
agreed that the Board may consider having the County pay for the building and 
the City could reimburse 50% of the cost to the County over a number of years 
which has yet to be determined.   
 
Mr. O’Driscoll added that the County Finance Division is currently working on 
composing a draft agreement which may be presented to the Board of 
Supervisors in approximately 4 to 6 weeks.   
 
The Board was favorable to instruct staff to move forward with this project. 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 



Mr. McDaniel stated that it would be advisable for the Public Works Division 
staff to prepare a plan and complete a package with a cost estimate that would 
be presented to the Board at a future meeting.  Chairman Pastor concurred 
and stated that an information package provided to the Board would be 
beneficial in order to ensure successful results with regard to this project.   
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider issuing official comments 
from the Board of Supervisors to the Tonto National Forest regarding the 
Resolution Baseline Hydrological and Geotechnical Data Gathering 
Activities Plan.   
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that currently 
there is a public comment period which ends June 23, 2014, regarding a 
proposed Plan of Operations for the Resolution Baseline Hydrological and 
Geotechnical Data Gathering Activities Plan.  She emphasized the importance 
for the County to express its continued support of Resolution Copper Mining, 
LLC.  The Tonto National Forest (TNF) has determined that an Environmental 
Assessment is the appropriate level of analysis for this proposed Plan.  The TNF 
is initiating scoping efforts to identify those issues and questions to be 
considered for evaluation.  Ms. Griffin advised that by the Board of Supervisors 
providing comments to this scoping phase of the environmental assessment, it 
will be considered part of the public record of this analysis done by the TNF as 
it moves forward in this project, and it will ensure that Gila County is kept 
informed as the process continues.   
 
Although this portion of the project is not located in Gila County, the County 
has a vested interest in supporting the moving parts of Resolution Copper 
projects and staying informed as to the progress of each part of the process.  
She added that the local community has been a part of the conversation with 
Resolution Copper during public meetings and the general consensus of the 
public is in agreement with the process.  Additionally, the economic benefit to 
the local area as well as to Arizona is expected to continue for approximately 50 
years.   
 
Each of the Board members expressed support of this ongoing effort to benefit 
the County.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved issuing official comments from the 
Board of Supervisors to the Tonto National Forest regarding the Resolution 
Baseline Hydrological and Geotechnical Data Gathering Activities Plan. 
 
3.  CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit to 
allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue within 
the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may not 
discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, 
pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of 
an open call to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors 

Page 4 of 5 
 



may respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, 
may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a 
future agenda for further discussion and decision at a future date.  

There were no requests to speak from the public. 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:00 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 



   
ARF-2659     Consent Agenda Item      5. H.             
Special Meeting
Meeting Date: 07/15/2014  
Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under
$50,000 for Weeks Ending 6-20-14; and 6-27-14

Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 6-20-14; and 6-27-14.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of June 16, 2014 to June 20,
2014; and June 23, 2014 to June 27, 2014.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending
6-20-14, and 6-27-14
Service Agreement 060614 with Humane Society of Central Arizona, Inc.
Amendment No. 1 with Gila Sweeping LLC
Service Agreement No. 060514-1 with DJ's Companies, Inc.
Addendum No. 1 with Jury Systems, Inc.
Service Agreement No. 051514 with Hye Tech Network
Service Agreement No. 061114-1 with North Mechanical LLC
Purchase Order-Agreement with Konica Minolta
Service & Maintenance Agreement
Amendment No. 1 to Lease Agreement with High Desert Humane Society, Inc.
Amendment No. 2 with Lin Cum, Inc.-Superior Court Document Vault Storage Service
Service Agreement No. 061014 with Armstrong Troyky, LLC



Page 1 of 3 

 

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
June 16, 2014 to June 20, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
060614 

Humane Society of 
Central Arizona, Inc. 

 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 060614 

Impound Agreement 
 
 

 
$31,200.00  

 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
6-18-14 

 
Option to renew 

for two (2) 
additional one (1) 

year periods  

 
This agreement has been in existence for many 
years. The purpose is to allow animals that have 
been captured by Rabies Control in Payson and 
surrounding areas to be impounded by the 
Contractor. This keeps the animals close to their 
owners and prevents the daily transport from 
Payson to Globe. The cost will be $2,600.00 per 
month. 
 

 
6880.102/7-2011 

Gila Sweeping 
 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 

6880.102/7-2011 
Parking Lot Sweeping Services 

 
 

 
$4,550.00  

 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
6-18-14 

 
Option to renew 

for two (2) 
additional one (1) 

year periods 

 
Vendor provides parking lot sweeping for various 
locations in Gila County. Amendment No. 1 has 
been issued to extend the contract term for an 
additional year. 

 
060514-1 

DJ’s Companies, Inc. 
 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 060514-1 

Septic Repairs at the Young 
Yard 

 
 

 
$1,500.00  

 

 
6-18-14 to 7-17-14 

 
6-18-14 

 
Expires 

 
The septic for the buildings at the Young yard is 
full and the mainline needs to be snaked due to 
clogs. 

 
Jury Systems 
Incorporated 

 
  

 
Addendum 1 to Software 
License and Maintenance 

Agreement  

 
$2,200.00  

 

 
7-18-13 to 6-30-14 

 
6-18-14 

 
Expires 

 
Jury Systems, Inc. provides the jury management 
software utilized by the Superior Court to process 
juror source lists, produce jury management 
reports, send questionnaires and summonses, 
form jury panels, provide payroll vouchers to 
compensate jurors for their services. Addendum 1 
has been issued to include the purchase of the 
JURY+ Checks software. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 
June 16, 2014 to June 20, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
051514 

Hye Tech Network & 
Security Solution 

 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 051514 

Network & Security Support 

 
$17,500.00 

 
7-11-14 to 6-10-15 

 
6-18-13 

 
Option to renew 

for two (2) 
additional one (1) 

year periods 
 

 
Contractor will provide network & security 
trouble shooting support, and security 
architecture enhancements.  for advanced 
Security and Programming of Cisco Firewalls, 
Routers, and Call Manager Integration with Video 
Bridge.  To also help with and resolve any issues 
that arise when creating Disaster Recovery 
Network as well as Route maps to tie in specific 
network equipment onto the SACCNET cloud. 
 

 
061114-1 

North Mechanical, LLC 
 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 061114-1 

URRD Work HH#8809 

 
$718.06 

 
6-18-14 to 6-30-14 

 
6-18-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
The purpose of this URRD contract is to repair a 
cooler and ensure correct usage for HH#8809. 

 
Konica Minolta Business 

Solutions 
 
  

 
Purchase/Order Agreement  

 
 

 
$3,285.82  

 

 
Date of Delivery 

 
6-18-14 

 
Expires 

 
The Sheriff’s Office Jail booking area needs to 
replace a broken copier. 

 
Konica Minolta Business 

Solutions 
 
 
  

 
Service and Maintenance 

Agreement  
 

 
$496.56/year 
plus sales tax  

 

 
36 months after 
delivery of machine 

 
6-18-14 

 
Expires 

 
This is a service and maintenance agreement for 
the new copier for the Sheriff’s Office jail booking 
area. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

June 23, 2014 to June 27, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
High Desert Humane 

Society 
 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Lease 

Agreement 
 
 
 

 
$9,600.00  

 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
6-25-14 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will extend the lease 
agreement with High Desert Humane Society for 
the animal shelter building for an additional year.   

 
MegaTronics 

International Corp. 
 
  

 
MegaTrak Extended Warranty 

Agreement 

 
$4,285.00 

 
8-1-14 to 7-31-15 

 
6-25-13 

 
Expires 

 

 
Contractor will provide extended warranty for 
the fuel maintenance system utilized by the 
County.  Fuel access MCU on all fuel tanks and 
service trucks.  
 

 
051514-1 

Lin-Cum, Inc. 
 
  

 
Amendment No. 2 to Gila 

County Superior Court Contract 
No. 051514-1 

Document Vault Storage  
Clerk of the Superior Court 

 
 

 
$10,066.42  

 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
6-25-14 

 
Renews 

 
Amendment No. 2 has been issued to extend the 
term of the agreement from July 01, 2014 to June 
30, 2015.  Contractor provides document vault 
archival storage services for the Gila County 
Superior Court. 

 
061014 

Armstrong Troyky, LLC 
 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 061014 
Cenpatico Underage Drinking 

 

 
$4,620.00  

 

 
6-4-14 to 6-30-14 

 
6-25-14 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor will provide a marketing campaign for 
an underage drinking program for the 
Department of Health and Emergency Services. 

 
































































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Update of legislative activity in Washington, D.C. by Patricia Power of Bose Public Affairs Group
	 Item 3.A. - Resolution No. 14-07-01 to submit Revised Gila County Housing Authority Annual Plan for FY2014
	Att1_2014 Public Housing Plan
	 Item 3.B. - Public Hearing Regarding the Final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget
	Att1_Newspaper Publication of Public Hearing
	 Item 4.A. - Adoption of the final 2014-2015 fiscal year budget for the Gila County Library District
	 Item 4.B. - Adoption of Resolution No. 14-07-03 Authorizing the Adoption of the Final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget
	Att1_Resolution No. 14-07-03
	Att2_2014-2015 Budget
	 Item 4.C. - Request for Approval of 2 Attorney Contracts for the Superior Court
	Att2_Professional Services Contract No. 060614 - Raymond Geiser
	Att3_Legal Explantion
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.D. - Planning and Zoning Dept. Case No. Z-14-01 - Beau Woodring Rezoning Application
	Att1_Staff Report
	Att2_Woodring's Withdrawal Notification
	 Item 4.E. - Appointment of an Alternative Hearing Officer for Community Development Division's Code Enforcement Program
	Att1_ARS 11-815
	 Item 4.F. - Contract Award for Bid No. 041414 Bulk Fuel and Lubricants
	Att2_IFB 041414 Bid Tabulation Form
	Att5_Legal Explantion
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.G. - Contract Award for Invitation for Bid No.012114 for the 2nd Floor Renovation for the School Superintendent's and Assessor's Offices
	Att1_Contract No. 012114-2nd Floor Renovation for the Schools and Assessors Offices
	Att2_Bid Results
	Att3_Addendum 3 Courthouse 2nd Floor Renovation
	Att4_Addendum 2 Courthouse 2nd Floor Renovation
	Att5_Addendum 1 Courthouse 2nd Floor Renovation
	Att6_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.H. - Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-1_Agreement between Gila County, Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and Freeport-McMoRan
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-1
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Att4_Legal Explanation IGA
	 Item 4.I. - Adopt Resolution No. 14-07-04 declaring a state of emergency within Gila County as a result of infrastructure & property damage caused by monsoons
	Att1_Resolution No. 14-07-04
	 Item 5.A. - Amendment No. 4 to Weatherization Low Income Assistance Agreement No. SW-ESA-2182-02Y4 with Governor's Office of Energy Policy
	Att1_Amendment No. 4 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4
	Att2_Amendment No. 3 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
	Att3_Amendment No. 2 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y3
	Att4_Amendment No. 1 Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
	Att5_OEP Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y2
	Att6_Legal Explanation
	 Item 5.B. - Revised Signature Page to an Application to Apply for a Contract with Arizona Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration
	Att1_Revised signature page to an Application for RSA DES
	Att2_Original signature page to an Appliation for RSA DES
	Att3_GEST Application RSA Contract DES
	 Item 5.C. - Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 014-0444 Pinal Gila Council For Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging, Region V
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 Contract No. 014-0444
	Att2_Contract No. 014-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 5.D. - Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. ADHS14-072102 with Arizona Department of Health Services
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	 Item 5.E. - Order to Cancel Precinct Committeeman Elections
	Att1_Order
	 Item 5.F. - Recorder's Office Monthly Report for May 2014
	Att1_Recorder''s Monthly Report for May 2014
	 Item 5.G. - June 10, 2014, and July 1, 2014
	Att1_BOS 07-01-14 Meeting Minutes
	JUNE 3, 2014
	JUNE 10, 2014
	JUNE 17, 2014
	JUNE 24, 2014

	Att2_BOS 06-10-14 Meeting Minutes
	Proposed Fee Schedule Changes

	 Item 5.H. - Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 6-20-14_ and 6-27-14
	Att1_Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 6-20-14, and 6-27-14

